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Vendors Final Questions 
 
 
#1: Will Delaware County provide a storage location for the equipment shipped to the County? 
 
No 
  
#2: In Addendum 1, the answer to question 16 states: 
Area 1 will be considered a separate test and results of both tests will be combined and weighed 
to provide the Coverage Area Reliability. 
  
Please provide the formula that will be used to determine this weighted result, and please define 
the specific parameters for each of the individual tests requested for each of the areas. 
 
Both Area 1 and non-area 1 require 97% of the time in 97% of the locations with no three 
adjacent grids failing.   
  
#3:  We would respectfully request an extension to the proposal due date of 90 days after the 
date vendors receive answers to submitted questions. This will allow bidders sufficient time to 
design/propose an optimal response to the finalized requirements based on the responses to the 
pre-bid questions.  
 
No 
  
#4: In response to pre-bid question #2 the County stated “Primary means of I/O is SECOM.” 
Please define the technical interface and point of demarcation for SECOM. 
 
SECOM is a system used to create console patches via a microwave transport between counties 
throughout the southeastern region of PA. Each county has a gateway that provides 4-wire audio 
into their console systems that can be used to patch into their counties LMR channels/talk-
groups. The system is aged, and alternative solutions are being worked on at this time. 
  
#5 - In Section 2.2 Project Scope the County specified “Provide the County with an asset and 
network management software system solution with a centralized database that is able to track, 
manage, and maintain the equipment and systems being proposed in response to this RFP, as 
well as existing assets.” In order to appropriately scale the Asset Management offering 
appropriately please define the quantity and description of the referenced existing assets. 
 
The system should be robust enough to manage at least 2,000 portable radios; 600 mobile radios; 
1,700 pagers; and 500 MDC’s 
 
#6 - What are the required capacity and retention requirements for the Eventide logger listed in 
Section 3.5?  
  
The county wishes to retain three years data. 
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#7 - 5.3 Mobile and Portable Equipment, Table 1 - Can the requirement for Speaker Mic 
w/Antenna be removed as a Mid Tier Portable requirement as the 97%/97% coverage design will 
not require the use of this capability? 
  
No 
 
#8 - Section 6.5 Portable Coverage - Is the portable coverage requirement within areas outside of 
Area 1 defined as 97% reliability, DAQ 3.4 (including testing in ½ mile grids), for a portable 
radio on the hip, on street for design and testing purposes? 
 
Field Acceptance Testing will be portable radio on the hip.  The system should be designed and 
will be tested to meet this requirement.   
  
#9 - Section 6.5 Portable Coverage - Any references to 18 dB Building Attenuation and/or in-
building coverage maps reflecting 18 dB Attenuation are to be provided for informational 
purposes only, is this correct? 
 
Correct.  As indicated in Section 6.5; "In the Proposer’s coverage maps, they shall provide signal 
power that is anticipated to achieve a DAQ of 3.4. The required signal power is based on the 
reference sensitivity minus the static C/N for reference sensitivity, plus the C/ (I+N) for DAQ 
3.4, minus the loss of the portable carrying method minus the building attenuation. 

The County will accept alternate designs if a DAQ 3.4 can be proven to be achieved through an 
alternative engineering design. If the body loss value used in a vendor's signal power threshold 
calculation is less than the value shown for the equivalent configuration in TIA TSB-88.1-E, the 
vendor shall justify the value used." 

#10 - Section 7.1 Coverage Acceptance Testing - Is the portable coverage requirement in Area1 
defined as 97% reliability, DAQ 3.4 within the County’s defined service area (including testing 
in ¼ mile grids), for a portable radio on the hip, on street for design and testing purposes? 
 
Field Acceptance Testing will be portable radio on the hip.  The system should be designed and 
will be tested to meet this requirement.   
  
 #11 - Section 9.4 Payment Milestones - Can the County provide any additional information on 
its priorities and how they will be weighted in the evaluation process?  
 
No 
  
#12 - In 4.13.3 NCMS Security - Can the County confirm if the Vendors are to include an IDS, 
IPS, and Firewalls as security mitigation mechanisms in the proposed design? 
 
Yes 
  
#13 - Section 4.13.1 NCMS Security, Should bidders offers include the following elements? 
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24x7 Security monitoring from a staffed Security Operations Center (SOC) staffed by 
personnel trained in the detection and mitigation of Cyber attacks. 
Pre-testing of patches and antivirus updates to ensure there is no negative impact on 
network operation.   
 
Yes 
 
Would you prefer vendors to provide the pre-tested patches for the County to install, or 
would you prefer vendor to install the patches for you on your behalf?  
 
The county would like an option for both methods. 
 
Network Risk Assessments & Penetration (PEN) Testing on a regular interval to 
determine any system vulnerabilities. If so, what should be the frequency of these tests? 
 
Yes.  The county would like your recommendations. 
 
Do you already have a business continuity and/or disaster recovery plan in place, or 
would you expect the vendors to provide one for you specific to our systems?  

The county does not. 

o If you have one in place, would you like for vendors to review it to ensure it 
translates to our proposed system? N/A 

o Once a plan is in place, would you like for vendor to conduct table-top 
exercises with your key-stakeholders?   No 

What model of security awareness training are you looking for? For example, live 
training sessions, or self-paced online training? How many people would be receiving the 
training?  

The county would like options for both.  Approximately 20 students. 

#14 - What is the grounding standard required for site development activities? 
 
R56 or equivalent  
  
#15 - The Area1.kmz and Delco Current MW.kmz files contain syntax errors and cannot be 
opened.  Would the County please provide corrected KMZ or zipped shapefiles? 
 
Done 
  
#16 - In order for all Proposers to clearly understand Delaware County, Pennsylvania’s service 
areas and have a common reference for the coverage design, would the County please provide 
the shapefile(s) or KMZ for Delaware County, PA? 
 
The proposers should have the ability to create a shapefile. 
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#17 - What are the County’s priorities and process for evaluation of the proposals? Example, will 
a solution that offers higher system availability receive a higher score? Will the County use a 
scoring system and can that be shared with vendors? 

The priorities are for a system which meets the counties requirements at the best price.  The 
scoring system will not be shared.   

#18 When considering utilization of the State Police shelters at Lima, Prison, and Upper Darby, 
can the County confirm that the existing power plants have the capacity to support the County’s 
additional equipment? 
 
Yes 
 
#19.  Can the transfer switch located at the Haverford Site shelter be used for the County’s 
equipment? 
 
The transfer switch located at the Haverford State site is not currently in use, and the operational 
status of the switch is unknown. Currently it is just being stored there with no connectivity and 
has been stored there for several years. 
 
#20  Per the associated table in Section 6.5 of the RFP, the Faded C/N for DAQ 3.4 loss factor of 
17.7dB is associated with C4FM (IMBE) (12.5kHz) which is the TSB-88 defined fade margin 
for P25 Phase I systems. Typically for a Phase II system, TSB-88 defined 16.4dB fade margin 
would be used as the design parameter. Is it the County's intent for Vendors to perform the 
coverage analysis for the new 700MHz Public Safety P25 Phase II System 
utilizing TSB-88 P25 Phase I parameters? 

We have amended the table. 

    Running Total 

Reference Sensitivity -119 dBm -119 dBm 

Static C/N -7.6 dB -126.6 dBm 

Faded C/N for DAQ 3.4 16.4 dB -110.2 dBm 

Swivel Clip Carrying Case 8.5 dB -101.7 dBm 

Building Attenuation 18 dB -83.7 dBm 

 

#21 Can the County confirm that the mandatory interoperability requirements as shown at the 
preproposal conference - are the only required interoperability connections: Montgomery County 
PA (800mhz), Philadelphia Co PA 
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(800mhz), Gloucester County NJ (700mhz), New Castle County DE (800mhz), Chester County 
PA (7/800mhz) Delaware Valley River Port Authority(800mhz), Commonwealth of 
Pennsylvania Statewide (7/800). 
 
Yes 
 
#22  Could the county please provide the estimated subscriber quantities, per model, to be 
proposed and priced in the RFP? 
 
County maintains a subscriber file that currently contains approximately 4500 portable radios, 
1500 mobile radios, and 175 control station/base radios assigned across police, fire, and EMS 
responders in Delaware County. These numbers are approximate.  
 
#23  Can the County provide the shape files for the county boundary and the enhanced testing 
area "Area 1"? 
 
Done 
 
#24 Can the County provide the Microsoft Word version of the RFP? 
 
Done 
 
#25 Please provide the needs assessment report mentioned during the site visits. 
 
The needs assessment report by V-COMM consulting is already on DelCo’s web page. 

#26  Can you please extend the deadline to ask additional questions? 

No 

#28 Due to the addendum not being provided until September 10 or later and the clarification 
questions not being answered until October 6, L3Harris respectfully requests a 45 day extension 
to the RFP response deadline. 

No 

#29 During the Site visits, it was observed that the dispatch consoles in the main dispatch room 
are equipped with what appears to be backup dispatch 
radios.  Does the County want proposers to include replacement backup radios? If so, how 
many? 

No backup radios are currently located at the dispatcher positions. We currently use portable 
base station/mobile kits or wireline tone remotes in the event of a console system failure. We do 
not expect backup radios at the dispatcher positions to be part of the proposal. 
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#30 During the site visits the county indicated a change in coverage requirements.  Can the 
county please confirm that the coverage requirement for area 1 will be changed to 97% portable 
outdoor coverage, without the addition of any attenuation to account for building loss? 

Correct 

#31 During site visits it was observed that the RF sites are currently backed up by DC power 
systems rather than UPS devices.  It was also observed that the State shelters that (per agreement 
with the County) will be made available to this project are equipped with DC power systems.   
Based on those observations:  a. Please indicate if the County prefers that vendors propose DC 
power systems rather than UPS devices at the locations that need new backup power solutions.  
If this is the case, please provide the required specifications/operational features for the DC 
power 
systems. 

We do not prefer one over the other. In shelters where DC power systems are currently available, 
we ask that those be used if they are in a maintainable working state. IE. State shelters were 
specified with additional capacity to allow us to use those DC plants which were only recently 
deployed. 

#32 What of the visited sites have generators that can be used by the County and provide 
specifications of those generators? 

Confirmed generator sites are as follows: 

Lima 
Prison 
Twin Oaks 
Eddystone 
Upper Darby 
Burlington 
WPLY 
Ridley Twp 
Radnor Police Station 
Darby Twp 
 

Other sites that have generators as part of their buildings electrical systems are as follows: 

Fitz Hospital (Unknown which circuits are backed up. We are told whole building but unable to 
confirm.) 
Scott Plaza (Unknown which circuits are backed up. We are told whole building but unable to 
confirm.) 
 
#33  Can the county identify the 4 county owned sites? 
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Delaware County owns the towers at the following locations: 

Upper Darby 
Lima 
Prison 
Marple (lattice) 
 

Delaware County owns the shelters at the following locations: 

Lima (Old Shelter) 
Prison (Old Shelter) 
WPLY  
Marple 1 and 2 
Burlington 
 

#34 Confirm we can use the state-owned shelters, DC power and generators Lima, Prison, Upper 
Darby.  Provide specifications/operational features of generators and DC power. 

We can confirm that all 3 of the State Police shelters can be used by the County. The state has no 
plans to add or expand their equipment currently in those shelters. See the updated attachments 
for information pertaining to the state shelters. 

#35 Is the Aston site FCCASR#1025869 currently in use by the county, part of the AM antenna 
array? 

The AM antenna array is on the same property, but no county equipment is attached to the array. 
The county equipment is all on the guyed lattice tower. 

#36 Please provide the latest tower structural analysis and tower mapping for:  Lima, Marple 1, 
Prison, Upper Darby 

Unavailable 

#37 Please provide the county's preferred make and model of pump control units 

The county does not have a preference 

#38 Please provide the following information about fiber between EMS building and equipment 
shelter:  Number of dark fiber pairs available for use by vendor, Type of fiber (multimode or 
single mode), Diagram illustrating the fiber run or estimated fiber run length and placement of 
patch panels at both end points 
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There are 6 strands of 50UM Multimode fiber. All strands are currently being used; however 
some re-arranging may be possible should we wish to expand and use this fiber. Currently the 
fiber patch panel at the 911 Center end is in the Switch Room mounted in the VESTA rack. The 
shelter end patch panel is mounted in the older Lima shelter next to the microwave rack. 
Estimated approx. 400 ft of fiber from end to end. 

#39   It is Proposer’s understanding that any required subcontractor’s insurance limits will be 
commensurate with the work being performed, which may be lower than the limits established in 
the County’s Insurance Requirement. Please confirm that our understanding is correct. 
 

The County is open to reviewing requests for waivers of the insurance requirements for specific 
subcontracts during the negotiation of the final agreement with the successful proposer.  

#40 It is Proposer’s understanding that the provision of online or telephone support services by 
an offshore affiliate will not be considered as a breach of this provision. Please confirm that our 
understanding is correct. 
 
Correct 
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